ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI Cl ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
Fai r banks, Al aska
July 20, 2009
9:48 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Chair
Representati ve Nancy Dahl strom Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill

Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Li ndsey Hol nes

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Bob Lynn

OTHER LEGQ SLATORS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son (via tel econference)
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

Representati ve Paul Seaton (via tel econference)
COW TTEE CALENDAR

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI NG S)

Li eut enant Gover nor

Crai g Canpbell - Fort Richardson
PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON
No Previous Action to record
W TNESS REG STER

CRAI G E. CAMPBELL, Conmi ssi oner

Department of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA);

Adj ut ant General, Al aska National CGuard;

Appoi nt ee, Lieutenant Governor

Fort Richardson, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as appointee to the position of
| i eut enant gover nor.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- July 20, 2009



TROY DUNN, Lieutenant Col onel (retired)

United States Air Force (USAF)

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified during the confirmation hearing
for Craig Canpbell as |ieutenant governor.

M TCHELL HRACHI AR

Hormer, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the confirmation hearing
for Craig Canpbell as |ieutenant governor.

JERRY MCCUTCHEON

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to the confirmation
of Craig Canpbell as |ieutenant governor.

RHONDA BOYLES

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Testified in support of the confirmation of
Crai g Canpbell as |ieutenant governor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9:48: 44 AM

CHAI R JAY RAMRAS called the House Judiciary Standing Conmittee
neeting to order at 9:48 a.m Representatives Ranras
Dahl strom Coghill, Guenberg, and Holnmes were present at the
call to order. Representatives WIlson (via teleconference),
Sal non, and Seaton (via teleconference) were also in attendance.

CONFI RVATI ON HEARI N S) Li eut enant Gover nor

9:49:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE RAMRAS announced that the only order of business
woul d be the consideration of Craig Canpbell to the position of
| i eut enant gover nor.

9: 50: 34 AM

CHAI R RAMRAS explained that, by request of Speaker Chenault,
this would be an informational confirmation hearing.

9:51: 57 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 2- July 20, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to AS 24.25.060, and
nmoved that M. Canpbell testify under oath. He pointed out that
this could be the only hearing in the House of Representatives,
and the only opportunity to receive this information.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL obj ect ed.
9:53:10 AM

CHAI R RAMRAS offered his belief that no designee had ever been
pl aced under oath during a confirmation hearing, and stated that
he did not want to set a precedent.

9:54: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES opined that an approval from this
confirmation hearing was in lieu of a general election, and she
seconded the notion to testify under oath

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out that testifying under oath
"enphasi zed the solemity of the occasion.” He observed that
only once before during Alaska's history had a non-elected
person been sworn in as governor or |ieutenant governor.

9:56: 25 AM

CHAIR RAVMRAS rem nded everyone that any voting would only
i ncl ude nmenbers of the House Judiciary Standing Comm ttee.

9:56: 52 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL of fered hi s bel i ef t hat public
confirmati on denonstrated that this was an "open process,"” hence
there was no increased value to being under oath.

9:58: 22 AM

CHAIR RAMRAS recalled that the prior House Judiciary Standing
Commttee confirmation hearings had not placed the designee
under oat h.

9:58: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM concurred wth Chair Ranras. She
suggested the conmttee nove forward w thout requiring an oath.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- July 20, 2009



9:59:55 AM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Guenberg and
Hol mes voted in favor of a notion to ask the designee to testify
under oath. Representatives Ranras, Coghill, and Dahlstrom
voted against it. Therefore, the notion failed by a vote of 2-
3.

10: 00: 51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG nentioned that he mght nove to
schedule an additional hearing with another conmttee. He
expressed concern that this hearing procedure differed from that
of the Senate.

CHAI R RAMRAS observed that the intent of this hearing was to
all ow an opportunity to present M. Canpbell to the public.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG voiced the possibility of sending
addi tional questions directly to M. Canpbell.

CHAIR RAMRAS requested that the House Judiciary Standing
Comm ttee nmenbers al so receive a copy of those questions.

10: 03: 02 AM

CRAIG E. CAWPBELL, Conm ssioner, Departnent of Mlitary &
Veterans’ Affairs (DWA); Adjutant General, Al aska National
Guard; Appointee, Lieutenant Governor, explained that he was
under consideration for the position of |ieutenant governor.

CHAI R RAMRAS nentioned that this confirmation hearing precluded
the swearing in cerenony as acting |ieutenant governor, and was
then subject to confirmation by the full I|egislature on August
10, 2009.

10: 04: 28 AM

MR. CAMPBELL testified that he has been conm ssioner of the
Departnment of Mlitary & Veterans’ Affairs (DWA) for nore than
6 years. He acknow edged that he was honored to be nom nated
for this position and that this process differed from prior
confirmation processes.

MR. CAMPBELL clarified that, as of July 26, 2009, he would be

"the acting lieutenant governor pending full confirmation.” He
allowed that wuntil the full confirmation process, he would not

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- July 20, 2009



have all the responsibilities and authorities of the office. He
opined that this would preserve the integrity of the executive -
| egi sl ative process, as it did not assunme confirmation. He
expressed his confort with the differing roles in the process,
and wel comed the opportunity to becone |ieutenant governor.

CHAI R RAMRAS explained that although he had voted against the

confirmation of Comm ssioner Schmdt as |ieutenant governor
designee, he |looked forward to voting for M. Canpbell. He
noted that the acting attorney general designee was also
awai ting confirmation. He endorsed the current confirmation
process that now "showed appropriate deference to the
| egi sl ative branch.” He expressed satisfaction that there was

now "order out of what was sonme degree of chaos in the |ast
coupl e of weeks."

10: 11: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL, observing that conmunication was a
necessity, asked what comrunications had taken place between M.
Campbel | and Lieutenant Governor Parnell a propos to the duties
and expectations for the |ieutenant governor.

MR. CAMPBELL reflected that he and Lieutenant Governor Parnell
"were on the sanme agenda politically” and disclosed that he
would perform roles beyond those nornally delegated to the
| i eutenant governor, possibly including honeland security and
ener gency nmanagenent, trade, education, and veterans’' affairs.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL pointed out that election |law was not an
easy area of law. He asked whether M. Canpbell had advocated a
position on any of the upcoming initiatives.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that he had not. He related that his
service on the Anchorage Assenbly had trained himto achieve an
under st andi ng before he made decisions. He stated his desire to
"find the balance of what's right." He reflected that he would
be working closely with legislators to understand the desired
direction of their constituents in order to determne the
wording for initiatives and referenduns. He suggested that
wording could often beconme a political issue, and it was his
role to make sure it was a |egal referendum He predicted that
there would be an increase in dialogue between the |egislature
and the |ieutenant governor, to ensure the "right decisions.”

10:17:11 AM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- July 20, 2009



CHAI R RAMRAS di scl osed that he had sought a commitnment from past
attorney general designees to study the cost of fuel in rura
Al aska. He asked for a commtnment from M. Canpbell to conduct
a study to ensure that the titles of initiatives are reflective
of the initiative text.

10: 20: 06 AM

MR. CAMPBELL stressed that it was the responsibility of the
| i eutenant governor's office to present a non-partisan, straight
forward education of what the initiative said, and he wel coned
suggestions to clarify that titles were reflective of text.

CHAI R RAMRAS suggested that Al aska was noving toward nore direct
denocracy, wth a proliferation of ballot initiatives. He
opined that title needed to be consistent with content.

10: 22: 21 AM

MR. CAMPBELL clarified that he would not have that report done
by January but is willing to work with Chair Ranras. He agreed
that the objective "was honorable and correct."”

10: 23:19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked M. Canpbell for his thoughts about
changes for the Division of Elections.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that he is not anticipating nmaking changes
to the current staff of the Division of Elections.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES asked if M. Canpbell was famliar wth
the Institute of Social and Econom c Research (I SER)

MR. CAMPBELL replied that Lieutenant Governor Parnell had also
suggested for himto read those studies.

REPRESENTATI VE HOLMES reported on one study that focused on the
chain of custody for ballots and voting machines, specifically
when shipping them to rural Al aska. She asked if M. Canpbel
woul d commt to inplement sone of the recomrendati ons.

MR. CAMPBELL declared that he tackles issues. He disclosed that
t hat Li eutenant Governor Parnell had requested a review of this
i Ssue. He stated that elections "are a significant, inportant
part of denocracy” and that the integrity of elections nust be
mai nt ai ned.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- July 20, 2009



10: 27:15 AM

CHAIR RAVMRAS asked for an explanation of the process for
assunption of the governorship.

MR. CAMPBELL offered his understanding that the governor nust be
an elected official. He explained that, should it be necessary
for him to becone governor, he would tenporarily assune the
office, and immediately call a special election. In response to
a question, he said he would be giving a lot of support and
deference to Lieutenant Governor Parnell. He established that
one of his strengths was comuni cati on, and he would continue to
have di al ogue with the | egislature and the governor.

10: 31: 57 AM

CHAI R RAMRAS thanked M. Canpbell for his exenplary service to
Al aska. He nentioned that he has not yet had an opportunity for
any discussions with Lieutenant Governor Parnell. He asked M.
Canmpbell to describe what he understands to be the direction of
t he new adm ni strati on.

MR. CAMPBELL, in response, said that he is wunable to "give
personal reference” to any admnistrative direction. He
observed that the direction of the state has been simlar during
the Mirkowski and Palin admnistrations: "an intent to grow
busi ness, to provide jobs, to make sure Al askans are educated so
they can live in Alaska and be productive.” He opined that
better communication of the agenda between the legislature and
the executive branch would bring about achievenent. He said he
would commt to job and education inprovenent, econoni ¢
devel opnent, tax constraint, and a future for Al askans.

10: 36: 20 AM

CHAI R RAMRAS asked what taxes he was referencing.

MR. CAWMPBELL related that all taxes, regardless of state,
federal, or local, need to be considered for the effect on the
i ndi vi dual . He espoused the need to "grow this state with nore
econom c opportunities, wth a good tax base that supports what
the state needs are, but keeps business conmng to Al aska..
keeps citizens wi thout an excessive tax burden." He reconmended
that the criteria for decision making should be jobs, economc
growt h, education, and the tax burden.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- July 20, 2009



10: 37: 55 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG surm sed that M. Canpbell did not know
how the policies would differ between Lieutenant Governor
Parnell and Governor Palin.

MR. CAMPBELL concurred.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG pointed out that M. Canpbell had

stated he would follow Lieutenant Governor Parnell. He opi ned
that M. Canpbell nust have an idea of what Lieutenant Governor
Parnell's positions will be, in order to nake the tax statements

that were just nade.

MR. CAMPBELL clarified that he wll follow the governor’s
policies but will be working to influence these policies. He
said he supports the generic direction of Lieutenant Governor
Parnell, whereas he wll give counsel for any specific

| egi sl ati on.

10: 39: 39 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about any points of disagreenent
bet ween M. Canpbell and Lieutenant Governor Parnell.

MR. CAMPBELL said that there were none at this tine.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to an article in the Fairbanks
Daily News Mner in which M. Canpbell stated that he had urged
Governor Palin to reject stimulus nonies, if acceptance would
bind Al aska to federal rules. He pointed to another article in
which M. Canpbell called the stinmulus noney a bribe. He asked
M. Canpbell if these quotes were accurate.

MR. CAMPBELL replied he that didn't renmenber specifically
calling the noney a bribe, but he did consider federal noney to
i npl enent progranms which Al askans nmay not want to be a bribe.
He allowed that the issue is "what do we want to do in the state
of Al aska, not how much noney do we want to collect."

10:42: 08 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if M. Canpbell would have
rejected the stinulus noney.

MR. CAWMPBELL said that he would have rejected the $28 mllion
for energy. In response to another question, he said that he

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- July 20, 2009



did not look any further into the stimulus because it did not
apply to DWA, so he could not say if there were other stinulus
funds that he would have rejected. He stated his reason for
rejection to be that he was inforned there were strings
attached, which included buil ding codes.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked if he still believed there were
sufficient strings to reject the noney.

MR. CAMPBELL said that if the legislature believes that there
are not significant strings, then he would support that
deci si on.

10: 43: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, referring to a recent United States
Suprenme Court decision determning that the property tax placed
on oil tankers by the City of Valdez was an unreasonabl e burden
on the tonnage clause, asked M. Canpbell iif he saw any
potential constitutional issues regarding the cruise ship head
tax, and if so, how would he deal with this.

MR. CAVPBELL replied that he was not famliar with the City of
Val dez case. He opined that the question of wuser taxation
required the determnation of a threshold whereby the tax was
reasonable for providing a service, but not a detrinent for
i nvestment in Al aska.

10: 46: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if the Division of Elections
woul d be involved in the upcom ng census.

MR. CAMPBELL i ndicated that he would have to further investigate
that issue before providing an answer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered his wunderstanding that the
federal census bureau would welconme state assistance. He
referred to another United States Suprenme Court case, Northwest
Austin Municipal UWility District Nunber One (NAMJUD) v. Hol der.
The case referenced Section 5 of the National Voting Rights Act
of 1965, which requires preclearance before a change in election
|aw. He asked M. Canpbell about his conmtnent to Section 5.

MR. CAMPBELL, in response to Representative Guenberg, stated
his support for the Alaska State Constitution and federal |aw.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -9- July 20, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if M. Canpbell would resist any
attenpts for Alaska to "bail out” of Section 5.

MR. CAMPBELL restated his support of the federal |aw, and stated
that he personally had no desire to question the inplenmentation
of Section 5.

10: 50: 54 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG, noting that there were about 56
| anguages spoken in his district, asked if M. Canpbell would
consi der additional bilingual ballots.

MR. CAMPBELL said that, in general, he was interested in
reviewing other ways to include participation by nore citizens
in the elective system

10: 52: 19 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG offered the belief that there was an
i nherent conflict of interest with the D vision of Elections
being presided over by the |ieutenant governor, an elected
official whose political fate was controlled by admnistration
of election |laws. He asked M. Canpbell for his view on placing
the Division of Elections under an independent conmm ssion.

MR. CAMPBELL said that he wouldn't favor that, as in a denocracy
"it is the elected officials who set the policy, tone, and

direction of our government." He offered his belief that
rel egating decisions to bureaucracy neans "that we get |less of a
denocracy. " He stated his disapproval of comm ssions which
"renove authority from elected officials.” He offered his

belief that the inportance of elections supported maintaining
the current structure.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if this <created an i nherent
conflict of interest.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that it did not, and in response to a
guestion, stated that there was always a potential for conflict
of interest, even wth the establishment of an independent
commi ssi on.

10: 54: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to AS 44.19.026, and asked if M.
Campbel | had been designated by Lieutenant Governor Parnell to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 10- July 20, 2009



preside in his absence, and, if not, who was designated to
preside in his absence.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that he had been appointed to this
position.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to AS 44.19.040, and asked if
there was an official letter of wthdrawal from Conm ssi oner
Schmi dt .

MR. CAMPBELL relayed that this letter was submtted to Governor
Palin on July 6, 2009.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON, referring to the expansion of the voting
process, asked if there was a solution for the delay it causes
for announcing final voting results.

10: 57: 39 AM

MR. CAMPBELL replied that he did not want to disenfranchise
voters and would continue to search for voting efficiencies. He
di scussed the problens of validation to ensure there is not
doubl e voti ng. He stated his commtnment to greater efficiency
and validation w thout voter disenfranchisenent. |In response to
Chair Ranras, he explained that one of the lost opportunity
costs to accepting the |lieutenant governor position was no
| onger being active in the culmnation of his DWA long term
strategic plans. He stated that his greatest personal |oss
woul d be the necessity of his retirement from mlitary service
after 35 years.

11: 02: 56 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, noting that the redistricting process
will begin in Alaska after the census, asked M. Campbell if he
woul d have a role in this process.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that his role was not yet defined.

11: 06: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG recalled that M. Canpbel | had
previously testified that eligibility for benefits to menbers of
the Alaska Territorial Guard (ATG was being determ ned. He
asked if there was a witten plan.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- July 20, 2009



MR. CAMPBELL explained that this statenent was nmade at a hearing
which occurred at the same tine the federal governnent was
di scussing cancellation of these retirenent benefits. He
el aborated on the background of these paynents, and the current
benefit schedul e. He reported that the state has not witten a
pl an as preparation is underway for federal paynent.

MR. CAMPBELL disclosed that the second part of this preparation
is for the conpletion of the ATG di scharge certificates.

11:10: 21 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked about benefits for surviving
spouses of ATG nenbers.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that each case is different and it will be
up to the federal government to address those instances on a
case- by-case basis.

11:12: 46 AM

MR. CAWMPBELL, in response to a request from Chair Ranras,
recounted his acconplishnents as conmnm ssioner and disclosed his
goal s as |ieutenant governor. He noted that, during the prior
six years, the Alaska National Guard had seen a dramatic
increase to its relevance as now nore than 75 percent had been
depl oyed to conbat zones. He presented that the D vision of
Honel and Security/ Emergency Managenent had grown and was doing
an outstanding job providing support to both the public and
private sectors. He praised the Alaska MIlitary Youth Acadeny,
and the national awards for excellence which it received
annual | y.

11:16: 41 AM

MR. CAMPBELL, in response to a question about his goals as
| i eutenant governor, established as his priorities: elections,
reapportionnment, and an increase to the nunber of voting
Al askans. He expressed his desire to continue his work wth
Di vi sion of Homel and Security/ Energency Managenent.

CHAI R RAMRAS asked if the tenporary cessation of the $.08 notor
fuel tax had inpacted the consuners.

VR. CAMPBELL reiterated his wearlier statenents that it 1is

necessary to be aware of all taxes and that citizens need to
know they are receiving a benefit from a tax. In response to

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- July 20, 2009



Chair Ranras, he answered that he had no know edge whether the
$.08 was "raked off to the refiners or producers.”

CHAIR RAVMRAS noted that the tenporary suspension of the $.08
fuel tax will cost the State of Al aska about $42 nillion, nost
of which would have been spent on road repair. He asked which
interest is being best served, the consuner saving the noney at
t he gas punp, or the consuner now having roads in disrepair.

11:22:12 AM

MR. CAMPBELL replied that this was "the essence of the debate of
government and the denocracy.” He offered his belief that
governnment should be small, and only as large as necessary to
provide the basic services to a society. He questioned the
necessity of a gas tax, and proposed, in order for roads to be
mai nt ai ned, ot her governnent prograns could be elim nated.

11: 23: 00 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked whether inprovenents can be nade to
voting systens in rural areas of the state, specifically the
mai |l er ballots.

MR. CAMPBELL shared his concern for rural Al aska and surm sed
that new technology will inprove the processes.

11: 25: 37 AM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON noted that many villages report results by
phone, not by conputer.

11: 27: 10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled that M. Canpbell, while
serving on the Anchorage Assenbly, had proposed to privatize
muni ci pal assets, such as utilities and |ibraries.

MR. CAMPBELL pointed out that he still advocates for selling
utilities, stating that private sector businesses should not be
run by the governnent. He stated his belief in faith based
support organi zati ons. In response to a question, he stated
there were not any state assets that he would consider selling.
He offered his belief that each school should be permtted to

address the issue of corporal punishnent. When asked about the
city bus system he reiterated his wearlier statenment that
private businesses are best run by the private sector. He

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 13- July 20, 2009



decl ared his support for healthy negotiations between governnment
and uni ons. In response to a question from Representative
G uenberg, he reaffirmed his support for the initiative process.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG comented that recently, sever al
serious attenpts had been nmade to increase the difficulty of
placing initiatives on the ballot. He asked M. Canpbell to
state his position on these notions.

MR. CAMPBELL replied that he would not support a neasure to
increase the difficulty; however, he enphasized the need to
ensure that ballot initiatives were valid.

11: 33: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DAHLSTROM di scl osed that she has worked with M.
Canpbel | and that she had a good understanding of his abilities.

11: 35: 07 AM

TROY DUNN, Lieutenant Colonel (retired), United States Air Force
( USAF) , expressed his belief that "past activities are
i ndicative of future performance.” He expressed concern wth
the ethical issues which continue to plague Alaska state
governnent and announced that he had serious ethical concerns
about the newly proposed admnistration. He related the
findings of the U S. Air Force (USAF) Inspector Ceneral's office
regarding the illegal use of government aircraft. He detailed
the investigative report, which found that the comander of the
Al aska Air National Guard and the operations group commander had
illegally scheduled and wused USAF aircraft for personal
conveni ence. He noted that the Inspector General’s office was
responsible for finding the facts, but not for providing
required punitive action. He pointed out that the findings were
forwarded to the command structure of the offending individual
for action.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN pointed out that Mjor General Craig
Canmpbel |, Adjutant CGeneral of the Alaska National Guard, was the
commander responsible for any punitive action.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN reported that when no punitive action
was taken by Major Ceneral Canpbel |, he contacted the
investigating officer at the Pentagon, and was told "that the
report and its results were forwarded to the Al aska Adjutant
Ceneral, Major General Craig Canpbell, for action, and they have
received no reply as to what action he would take." He noted

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- July 20, 2009



that it is customary within the chain of command to respond. He
continued, revealing that he sent a Iletter and supporting
docunents to both the candidates for governor, and subsequently
to CGovernor-elect Palin. He shared that he followed up wth
then Chief of Staff Tibbles, who responded that the matter had
been forwarded to the Departnment of MIlitary & Veterans’ Affairs
(DWA) and this was all that he could do. Li eut enant Col onel
Dunn explained that he contacted the next nmenbers in his chain
of command, which included Senator Ted Stevens. He shared the
e-mai | response he received from Senator Stevens:

Troy, | got word today fromthe governor's office that
action is being taken on this. Can't say nore at this
time, but I think it will be obvious when it occurs.

He related that of the two individuals naned 1in the
i nvestigation, the commander of the Alaska Ar National Guard
subsequently retired, but the operations group comander was
pr onot ed.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN offered copies of the testinony. He
stated his belief that WMjor GCeneral Canpbell violated the
ethics of the office and the trust of his conmand with his
initial lack of action and his ensuing pronotion of the
operations group comuander. He opined that "this lack of
character would not be tolerated in the active duty mlitary

should not be tolerated in the Alaska Guard or any public
of fice."

11: 43: 23 AM

CHAI R RAMRAS request ed copi es of the testinony.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN, 1in response to a question from
Representative Dahl strom said that D ane Hutchinson signed the
e-mai |l response from Senator Steven's office.

CHAIR RAMRAS relayed that although fornmer Lieutenant Governor
desi gnee Schmdt had received a 95 percent no confidence vote
from his departnmental enployees, he was overwhel mi ngly confirnmed
by the legislature. He disclosed that he supported the
confirmation of M. Canpbell, and that he would encourage the
support of other legislators, based on M. Canpbell’s conposite
contribution to the state.

LI EUTENANT CCOLONEL DUNN, noting that "the ends do not justify
the neans,” opined that once there is violation of "the

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -15- July 20, 2009



cornerstone of integrity" there is no recovery. In response to
Chair Ranras, he pointed out that knowi ngly doing sonething
wong is unforgiveable. He offered his ©perception that
| eadership character is best anal yzed through subordinate staff.

CHAI R RAMRAS relayed that nenbers of the air guard group spoke
hi ghly of M. Canpbell.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN, in response to a question, said that he
was offering factual information, not allusion. He referred to
the Inspector General report, in which mlitary personnel were
i nterviewed under oat h.

LI EUTENANT COLONEL DUNN rel ayed that he had no personal issue
with M. Canpbell, but was nmerely trying to do his duty.

11:54: 50 AM

M TCHELL HRACHI AR opined that mlitary and civil training and
service were very different. He noted that no testinony was
offered on M. Canpbell's position on social issues. He assuned
that M. Canpbell would represent both liberal and conservative
Vi ews. He asked that as M. Canpbell would not be retired from
the mlitary for another 60 days, was it legal for an individual
to serve as |lieutenant governor while in the mlitary. He
expressed concern wth mlitary representation in civil
gover nnent .

11:58: 15 AM

JERRY MCCUTCHEON offered coments on the gas |ine process. He
said he is opposed to the appointnment of M. Canpbell. He cited
lack of Alaska Air Guard |eadership for fire fighting in rural
Al aska. He opined that M. Canpbell was an ideol ogue who would
obstruct and "prolong the governnent |egislative conflict."”

12: 01: 43 PM

RHONDA BOYLES praised the integrity of M. Canpbell and
encouraged his appointnent. She discussed the inportance that a
| eader is an ethical team player and a conpassionate person.
She endorsed the confirmation of M. Canpbell.

12: 04: 19 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS, after ascertaining that no one else wshed to
testify, closed public testinony.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 16- July 20, 2009



REPRESENTATI VE  COGHI LL acknow edged that there had been
significant pressure to build the Alaska Air National Guard from
a state focus to a national conbat focus. He comended M.

Campbel |'s | eadership, and he predicted the sanme caliber of

| eadership as |ieutenant governor.

12: 08: 13 PM

CHAI R RAMRAS disclosed that he has a personal friendship wth
M. Canpbell, and he had no doubt of his ability to "execute the
tangi ble duties of the job." He opined that the intangible
duties, including the art of comrunication, would becone nore
i nportant. He expressed concern with the in-state pipeline
position of Lieutenant Governor Parnell and asked that M.
Canpbel |l nmake known the energy needs of the Interior. He
expressed his support of M. Canpbell as |ieutenant governor.

12: 12: 07 PM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 12:12 p.m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- July 20, 2009



